
 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA   
January 8, 2019, 6:30 p.m. 
Sweet Home Police Department, 1950 Main Street 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:            Swearing in of Council Elects 

Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Nash  
   Councilor Goble   Councilor Trask 
   Councilor Gourley 

 
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes: December 11, 2018 - Regular Meeting (pg. 3-6) 
                                                  December 18, 2018 – Executive Session (pg. 7) 
                                                  December 18, 2018 – Special Meeting (pg. 8) 

           
D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions: 

 
E. Old Business: 
 
F. New Business: 

a) Nominations for 2019 Mayor 
b) Council Election of 2019 Mayor 
c) Nominations for 2019 President Pro-Tem 
d) Council Election of 2019 President Pro-Tem 
e) PUBLIC HEARING: Appeal to City Council of a Planning Commission Decision for VR 

18-07, a Variance in order to build a 1,728 sq. ft. personal shop in an R-1 Zone. 
The Public Hearing will be opened and immediately continued until January 22, 
2019 at 6:30 PM in order to allow time for additional notification of the hearing. 
Public testimony will be received at the January 22, 2019 continued hearing (pg. 9-
61) 

f) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 1 for 2019 -Sweetheart Run Road Closures 
(pg. 62-65) 

g) Request for Council Action – Resolution No. 2 for 2019 - Revised Fiscal Policy (pg. 66-
81) 

h) Request for Council Action – IGA Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments and 
Sweet Home Teleworking Space (pg. 82-85) 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 1



i) Information Only – City of Sweet Home Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Plan Update 
(pg. 86-97) 
 

G. Ordinance Bills 
i. Introduction and Request for Ordinance  
ii. First Reading of Ordinance Bills  
iii. Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 
iv. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 
H. Reports of Committees: 

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 
c) Department Director’s Reports: 

i. Finance Director 
(1) Revenue & Expenses (pg. 97-98) 

ii. Library Services Director 
(1) Library Monthly Report (pg.99) 
(2) Circulation Stats - Oct – Dec 2018 (pg. 101) 
(3) Patron Stats – Oct – Dec 2018 (pg. 101) 
(4) Library Advisory Board Minutes 12-13-18 (pg. 102) 

iii. Community and Economic Development Director  
iv. Police Chief 

(1) Monthly Report (pg. 103-104) 
v. Public Works Director 

(1) Monthly Report December 2018 (pg. 105-107) 
vi. City Attorney’s Report  

 
I. Reports of City Officials:  
Administrative & Finance/Property (Minutes 12-11-18) (pg.108) Goble 
Public Safety/Traffic Safety   
Public Works Mahler 
Park and Tree Committee  Trask 
Youth Advisory Council Gourley 
Chamber of Commerce Coleman 
Fire District Trask 
Council of Governments  Gerson 
Area Commission on Transportation  
Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 
Ad Hoc Committee on Health  Gourley 
 
J. Council Business for Good of the Order: 
 
K. Adjournment  

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 2



SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
December 11, 2018 

 
Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police Department. The Pledge 
of Allegiance was recited. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Library Services Director Rose Peda, City Attorney Robert 
Snyder, Community and Economic Development Director Jerry Sorte, Public Works Director Greg 
Springman, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, Finance Director Brandon Neish and Recording Secretary Julie 
Fisher. 
 
Visitors Registered to Speak: None 
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
         
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  P  Councilor Gourley             P 
  Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler   P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor  Trask  P  
  Councilor Goble  P 
 

 

Consent Agenda: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Recognition of Visitors & Hearing 

of Petition: 

 

Capitol Christmas Tree Recognition: 
Nikki Swanson, USFS and 
Councilor Susan Coleman 
 
 
 
Oregon Community Foundation 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Old Business: 

 

Request for Council Action – 
Resolution No. 20 for 2018 – A 
Resolution Adopting Revised 
Personnel Policies for Employees, 
Interns and Volunteers of the City of 

 

Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda as 

submitted (Gerson/Trask). Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 

Opposed, 0 Absent. 

 
Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 
Approval of Minutes: November 27, 2018 – Executive Session 
                                 November 27, 2018 – Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
A short video recap of the Capitol Christmas Tree trip to 
Washington D.C. was shown.  Mayor Mahler presented Nikki 
Swanson, USFS and Councilor Susan Coleman with a plaque 
recognizing all their efforts in making the Capitol Christmas Tree 
event a great event for our community. 
 
Library Services Director Peda gave a brief history about the 
Oregon Community Foundation who has recently awarded the 
Sweet Home Library with a grant for Pop-Up Libraries. 
JoAnn McQueary with the OCF stated that only 2 applications 
were received from Linn County.  A grant writing workshop will 
be held some time in the upcoming year to encourage 
applications from Linn County. 
 
 

 
City Manager introduced the revised Personnel Policies for the 
City of Sweet Home.   Councilor Gerson was concerned that 
subordination was listed as an employee value and did not feel 
subordination is a value.  City Manager Towry explained that 
insubordination can be a cause for discipline, so subordination is 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 3



Sweet Home. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New Business: 

 
Proclamation – Canvassing of 
Election Results 
 
 
 
 
 
Request for Council Action and 

First Reading of Ordinance Bills: 

 

Second Reading: 

 

Third and Final Reading of 

Ordinance Bills: 

  

a valued quality.  By consensus the Council agreed to remove 
the term value from the Code of Conduct and Work Ethics 
section in the revised Personnel Policies for the City of Sweet 
Home. 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 20 for 2018- A Resolution 

Adopting Revised Personnel Policies for Employees, Interns 

and Volunteers of the City of Sweet Home as Amended 

(Gourley/Trask). Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 

0 Absent. 

 
Mayor Mahler read the Proclamation Canvassing the Election 
Results from the November 6, 2018 Election. 
 
Motion to accept the November 6, 2018 Election Results 

(Goble/Gourley).  Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 Opposed 

and 0 Absent. 

 
 
None 
 
None 
 
Community and Economic Development Director Sorte read by 
Title Only Ordinance Bill No. 5 for 2018. 
 
Motion to adopt Ordinance Bill No. 5 for 2018 – An 

Ordinance Amending the Official Zoning Map.  

(Gerson/Coleman).   

 

Roll Call Vote: 

Councilor Briana 
Councilor Coleman 
Councilor Gerson 
Councilor Goble 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
 
Motion passed with 7 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 0 Absent. 

 
 
Mayor’s Report  
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
 

 
None 
 
City Manager Towry announced an All Staff Meeting on 
Wednesday, December 19th.  Offices will be closed from 11:30am 
until 1:30pm. 
An Executive Session was scheduled for December 18, 2018 for 
the review of the City Manager’s evaluation.  A regular meeting 
with immediately follow to approve and sign the evaluation. 

 
Department Directors Reports: 

 
Finance Director 

 
 
 
Finance Director Neish reported there were 48 accounts turned off 

Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 4



 
 

Library Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community and Economic 
Development Director 

 
Police Chief 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Works 
 
 
 
 
 
     City Attorney  

for non-payment in November and 57 scheduled for December. 
 
Library Services Director Peda announced a grant from the State 
Library in the amount of $1500.00 for the Summer Reading 
Program with the theme of Universe of Stories. 
Nikki Swanson, USFS commended the Sweet Home Library for 
their Apples from Oregon program that coincided with the Capitol 
Christmas Tree’s journey to Washington D.C. 
 
CEDD Jerry Sorte referred to the report in the packet.  There were 
no questions of Council. 
 
Chief Lynn reported on the Shop with a Cop program that 
benefited 37 local children and announced the Sharing Tree in the 
lobby of the Police Department. 
A search warrant was executed on Willow Street which resulted in 
multiple arrests. 
A new office was sworn in this past week. 
 
PWD Springman stated the Leaf Collection Program has been a 
success and is winding down.  The program will end for the 
season the end of the week. 
PWD Springman stated at the next meeting, he will have an 
update on the leak detection and repairs. 
 
City Attorney Snyder reported to the Council on the committees 
and which are required by ORS, SHMC and which are not 
required.  City Attorney Snyder stated the topic will be on the 
agenda during an upcoming meeting for consensus on how to 
proceed. 

Committee Reports: 
 
Administration & Finance/ 
Property Committee 
 
 
Public/Traffic Safety 
 
Public Works 

 
 
Councilor Goble reported a meeting was held to review bulk water 
rate proposals.  The item was tabled until more information could 
be brought forward.  
 
No Report 
 
No Report 

City Boards/Committees: 
 
         Chamber of Commerce 
 
 
          Fire District 
 
          Park & Tree Commission 
 
          Y.A.C.  
 
 
 
          Ad Hoc Committee  
          Community Healthcare 

 
 
Councilor Coleman stated the Chamber has shared a quarterly 
report via email.  
 
Councilor Trask reported the Sharing Tree is up. 
 
None 
 
Councilor Gourley reported the YAC will begin scheduling lunch 
meetings and inviting business leaders for discussion, first 
interviewing Dr. Larry Horton. 
 
Councilor Gourley reported on the results of the survey on how 
first year medical students from Western University can serve with 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 5



 the public. 
 

   Regional Boards/Committees: 
 
Area Commission on Transportation 
(ACT) 
 
Council of Governments (COG) 
 
Solid Waste Advisory Council 
(SWAC) 
 
Council Business for Good of the 
Order: 
 
 
Adjournment: 

 
 
No Report 
 
 
Councilor Gerson reported the next meeting in January. 
 
No Report 
 
 
Mayor Mahler presented outgoing Councilor Robert Briana with a 
plaque in recognition and thanks for his service on the Sweet 
Home City Council. 
 
With No further business the meeting adjourned at 7:20 PM 

 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the December 11, 2018 regular 
City Council Meeting. 
 
 
               
                        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
              
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 6



 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 
 December 18, 2018 
 
 
The City Council Executive Session was opened at 5:30 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police 
Department. 
 
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  AB   Councilor Gourley  P   
  Councilor Coleman  AB  Mayor Mahler  P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor Trask  P 
  Councilor Goble  AB     
     
Staff:  City Manager Ray Towry, City Attorney Robert Snyder and Recording Secretary Julie 
Fisher. 
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
 
Mayor Mahler read the Executive Session Announcement.   
 
The purpose of the meeting was an Executive Session as authorized by ORS 192.660 (2)(i) 
To review and evaluate the employment-related performance of the chief executive officer of 
any public body, a public officer, employee or staff member who does not request an open 
hearing, in this case, the City Manager. 
 
There was time for questions and comments, no official decisions were made.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
  
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the December 18, 2018 
Executive Session City Council Meeting. 
 
 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager– Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 7



 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

 
 December 18, 2018 
 
The City Council Special Meeting was opened at 5:41 p.m. in the Sweet Home Police 
Department. 
 
Roll Call: Councilor Briana  AB   Councilor Gourley  P   
  Councilor Coleman  AB  Mayor Mahler  P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor Trask  P 
  Councilor Goble  AB     
     
Staff:  City Manager Ray Towry, City Attorney Robert Snyder and Recording Secretary Julie 
Fisher. 
 
Media: Sean Morgan, The New Era  
 
The purpose of the meeting to review and approve the City Managers evaluation. 
 
Motion to approve the City Manager’s Evaluation (Gerson/Trask).  The motion passed with 
4 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 3 Absent (Briana, Coleman, Goble) 
 
Motion to approve a 3% step increase for the City Manager (Trask/Gerson). 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilor Coleman 
Councilor Gerson 
Councilor Goble 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Briana 
 
The motion passed with 4 Ayes, 0 Opposed and 3 Absent (Briana, Coleman, Goble)  
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:47 p.m. 
  
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the December 18, 2018 
Special City Council Meeting. 
5 
              
           Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                     
City Manager– Ex Officio City Recorder 

Absent 
Aye 
Absent 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Absent 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 8



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
January 8, 2019 
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Jerry Sorte, CED Director 
 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Public Hearing: Appeal to Planning 
Application Variance VR18-07 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Staff Report for the appeal to VR18-
07 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
      RESOLUTION 
 X   MOTION 
  _  OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
 
This RCA provides information pertaining to an appeal by the City Manager of the Planning 
Commission’s decision to approve a variance request to build a 1,728 square foot shop building 
in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone. The City Council will hold a public hearing and make 
a final local decision on this matter.  
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
 
The applicant, James Pickett, applied under application VR18-07 to build a 1,728 square foot 
shop building in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone. The maximum floor area for an 
accessory structure in the R-1 zone is 864 square feet. The property is located at 203 5th 
Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386. The property is identified on the Linn County Assessor’s Map 
as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700, and it contains approximately 1.55 acres. The Staff Report 
(attached) includes maps that depict the property and proposed shop location. 
 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on November 5, 2018 to consider this variance 
request. An opportunity was provided for public testimony at the public hearing. After closing the 
public hearing, the Planning Commission deliberated and voted 3-2 to approve the variance. 
The minutes for the hearing are included as Attachment D to the Staff Report. The Planning 
Commission’s decision is memorialized in the Order of Conditional Approval included as 
Attachment F to the Staff Report.  
 
City Manager Ray Towry filed an appeal to the Planning Commission’s decision on VR18-07 on 
November 30, 2018 under Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) 17.12.050: “The City Manager 
shall have the power and duty to enforce the provisions of this title.” The City Manager cited that 
the decision on VR18-07 did not include adequate findings to demonstrate compliance with all 
of the decision criteria for the application.  The City Manager found that it has not been shown 
that: 

 
“The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the 
property” [SHMC 17.88.040(C)]; 
 
Or that: “The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult to 
develop” [SHMC 17.88.040(H)].  

 
A decision on a land use application must be made based on a review of the proposal under all 
of the applicable review and decision criteria. The review and decision criteria are those 
sections of the SHMC that apply to the application and are listed and discussed under Section 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 9



IV of the Staff Report (attached). By their nature, the criteria are discretionary. At this time, the 
role of the City Council will be to hold a public hearing, consider the variance proposal and all 
testimony that is provided, and make a decision on this application. 
 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
 
Should the City Council approve or deny this proposal for a variance? The City Council must 
determine if the applicant’s proposal complies with all of the criteria for a variance listed in the 
SHMC; which are provided in Section IV of the Staff Report (attached). 
 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
 

● Neighboring Property Owners and Residents. The proposed shop building will have the 
most immediate impact on neighborhood surrounding the subject property. Neighbors 
within 100 feet of the property have been notified of this public hearing. 

● City of Sweet Home Residents. Sweet Home residents will be impacted on how the City 
applies its standards for granting variances. The City Council’s decision will be used as 
guidance for future application of the code. 
 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
 
Comments that have been received in response to this application are included in the Staff 
Report. To date, staff has received one comment from a neighboring property owner. The 
comment from the property owner at 140 7th Ave opposes the application, and is included as 
Attachment E to the Staff Report. 
 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
 
A stable solution requires consideration of this application by the City Council after providing an 
opportunity for the applicant and any member of the public to provide testimony at a public 
hearing. The City Council should consider the precedent that is set by this decision.  
 
OPTIONS: The City Council will need to hold a public hearing in order to hear testimony related 
to this application. After the public hearing has been concluded, the options before the City 
Council include the following: 

1. Move to approve application VR18-07 and thereby approve the variance proposed at 
203 5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

2. Move to deny VR18-07 and thereby deny the request for the variance proposed at 203 
5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 
4. Do Nothing. 
5. Other.     

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Based on the information submitted into the record as of the writing of this RCA, I recommend 
that the City Council follow Option 2 and deny the application. It is my opinion that there is not 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 10



adequate information in the record to demonstrate compliance with all of the criteria for the 
variance request. The reasons for this recommendation are discussed in the Staff Report 
(attached). In particular, the applicant has not adequately shown that: 
 

“The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the 
property” [SHMC 17.88.040(C)]; 
 
Or that: “The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult to 
develop” [SHMC 17.88.040(H)]. 

 
If prior to, or at the public hearing, evidence is presented that the City Council finds to 
adequately address all of the criteria for approval of a variance, then my recommendation is that 
the application be approved as outlined in Option 1. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 11



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  1 

 

 

 

 

 
Staff Report Presented to the City Council 

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot shop 
building. In the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory 
structure is 864 square feet. [SHMC 17.08.030(D)].  

The subject property is located in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone.   

APPELLANT: Ray Towry, City Manager 

APPLICANT: James Pickett 

PROPERTY OWNER: James Pickett 

FILE NUMBER(S):  VR18-07 

PROPERTIES: 203 5th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the Linn 
County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700.  

REVIEW AND  
DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) Sections 17.88.040, 

17.88.050, 17.08.030(D) 
 

HEARING DATE &TIME: January 8, 2019 at 6:30 PM 

HEARING LOCATION: Sweet Home Police Department, Council Chambers at 1950 
Main Street, Sweet Home, Oregon 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg. Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: 
vgo.rthomeoeesw@gegacl  

REPORT DATE: December 31, 2018 

 

I. BACKGROUND 

The Planning Commission provided an opportunity for public testimony at a public hearing on 
November 5, 2018 for Variance Application VR18-07.  At that hearing the Planning Commission 
heard testimony from staff and from the applicant.  Once the hearing was closed the Planning 
Commission deliberated and then voted 3 to 2 to approve the variance.  The Notice of Decision 
was mailed on November 19, 2018.  The Appeal period for the decision was 12 days from the 
date the decision was mailed, ending on December 1, 2018.  The City Manager, Ray Towry, 
filed the appeal for application VR18-07 on November 30, 2018. 

The appeal is being filed under SHMC 17.12.050: “The City Manager shall have the power and 
duty to enforce the provisions of this title.” The City Manager cited that the decision on VR18-07 
did not include adequate findings to demonstrate compliance with all of the decision criteria for 
the application.  The City Manager found that It has not been shown that: 

  

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12

th
 Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 12



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  2 

 

“The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the property” 
[SHMC 17.88.040(C)]; 

Or that: “The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult to develop” 
[SHMC 17.88.040(H)]. 

II. PROJECT AND PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot personal shop. In the 
Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory structure is 864 
square feet.  

SHMC 17.08.030(D) requires:  An accessory structure shall be detached from all other buildings 
by at least six feet. Accessory structures shall have a maximum floor area of 864 square feet. 

 

ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: 

Property Zoning Designation Comprehensive Plan Designation 

Subject Property Residential Low-Density (R-1) Low Density Residential 

Property North Residential Low-Density (R-1) Public 

Property East Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

Property South Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

Property West Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

 

Floodplain Based on a review of the FEMA FIRM Maps; Panel 41043C0913G dated 
September 29, 2010, the subject property is not located in the 100-year 
floodplain.  

Wetlands: The subject property does not contain wetlands that are inventoried on the 
Sweet Home Local Wetlands Inventory or the National Wetlands Inventory 
(NWI) Map. 

Access: The subject property has frontage along 5th Avenue.  

Services: The subject property has access to city water and sewer. 

Street: 5th Avenue is a local street and has a 50 foot right-of-way.   

 

TIMELINES AND HEARING NOTICE:  

Application Received:     October 3, 2018 

Application Deemed Complete:   October 8, 2018 

Notice Distributed to Neighboring Property  
Owners Within 100 feet and Service Agencies: October 16, 2018 

Notice Published in New Era Newspaper:  October 22, 2018 

Date of Planning Commission Hearing:  November 5, 2018 

Date of Appeal:     November 30, 2018 

Appeal Notice Distributed to Neighboring Property  

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 13



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  3 

 

Owners Within 100 feet and Service Agencies: December 17, 2018 

Notice Published in New Era Newspaper:  December 26, 2018  

Date of City Council Hearing:    January 8, 2019 

120-Day Processing Deadline:   January 31, 2019 

 

III. COMMENTS (submitted to Planning Commission for November 5, 2018 Meeting) 

Engineering Division: Project & Location: 
 Request VR 18-07 is for a Variance to build a 1,728 SqFt shop
 building at 203 5th Avenue, 13S01E31CD-700.  Construction will  

be 15ft from the east, and 5ft from the north property lines.  The 
property has a paved driveway access to the public frontage to 5th 
Ave to the west, which has 12ft of AC pavement, shallow grass 
swale drainage, and a 50ft wide right-of-way.   
Streets & Stormwater: 
The property naturally grades and slopes to the north, with all 
drainage running appearing to run onto the adjacent school 
property, or the properties on 7th Ave.  A drainage swale system 
on the school property used to run northerly along the property 
lines of the adjacent properties, and may still be there.   
Water & Sanitary: 
The property is served by sewer with the main line in the back 
yards under the common line between the school grounds and the 
backyards off 7th Ave.   The city has an easement on the west 
property line by public utility placement, with a width generally 12ft 
centered on the property line so that 6 ft would be on either 
side.  The proposed structure would not encroach into the 
easement.   The water service is from 7th Ave, with the line 
running between two driveways of adjacent properties.   
Comments & Recommendations: 
Engineering Division would recommend that drainage runoff be 
contained on site without flowing directly downslope to the east 
neighbors or the school grounds.   The school may allow drainage 
from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale. 
-Joseph Graybill, PE, City of Sweet Home 

 

Building Division: The Building Program has no issues with this variance request. 
 
OR Dept. State Lands It is unlikely there are wetlands in that corner of the tax lot where the 

shop is proposed to be built. 
 -Lauren Brown, Wetland Ecologist 
 
Public Comments: See Attachment E 
 

IV. REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA  

The review and decision criteria for a variance are listed below in bold. Findings and analysis 
are provided under each review and decision criterion.  

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 14



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  4 

 

A. A determination that the criteria have been met involves the balancing of competing 
and conflicting interests. The following considerations may be used as guidelines in 
the granting authority's deliberations. [SHMC 17.88.050(A-E)] 

a. Whether the situation that created a need for a variance was created by the 
person requesting the variance; 

b. The economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 
is denied; 

c. An analysis of the physical impacts the development could have, such as 
visual, noise, traffic, and increased potential for drainage, erosion or 
landslide hazards; 

d. Preservation of native tree species such as Oregon White Oak and Pacific 
Madrone over eight inches in caliper or Douglas Fir, Willamette Valley 
Ponderosa Pine, Big Leaf Maple, Incense and Western Red Cedar over 12 
inches in caliper, measured at four and one-half feet above grade on the 
uphill side; 

e. Whether the proposal impacts the aesthetics of the property.  

Staff Findings: The criteria for a variance are listed in Subsection B below. The above section of 
the SHMC provides a list of considerations that may be used when evaluating each of the 
criteria. 

B. The criteria that shall be used in approving, approving with conditions, or denying a 
requested variance will be based on findings with respect to compliance with each 
of the following criteria, if applicable. 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Applicant’s Comments: The property behind the subject property is an old railroad trail. The 
property to the north of the subject property is Oak Heights grade school. There are no 
neighbors to the east of the property that borders 7th Avenue.  With the size of the property 
(approximately 67,154 Square feet), the applicant does not believe that it will have a negative 
effect on property values. 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. The 
Comprehensive Plan lists the subject property as Low-Density Residential. The maximum floor 
area for an accessory structure is 864 square feet [17.08.030(D)]. 

b. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; [SHMC 
17.88.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any goals or policies of the Comprehensive Plan that 
would preclude the proposed variance. 

c. The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of 
the property; [SHMC 17.88.040(C)] 

Applicants Comments: The applicant stated, at the Planning Commission hearing, that due to 
the lot size of 1.55 acres, he prefers to build a 1,728 square foot shop. The applicant is open to 
other options; a 1,200 square foot shop, or an 864 square foot shop with a lean to for RV 
storage. 

Staff Findings: The applicant stated in the November 5, 2018 Planning Commission meeting 
that he would be willing to reduce the size of his shop to closer meet code. [SHMC 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 15



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  5 

 

17.08.030(D)]. For this reason, a request to build the proposed 1,728 square foot shop does not 
appear to be the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of the property. 

d. The requested variance is consistent with the purposes of the zone; [SHMC 
17.88.040(D)] 

i. The purpose of the R-1 zone is to provide areas suitable and desirable 
for single-family homes, associated public service uses and duplexes 
on corner lots. The R-1 zone is most appropriate in areas which have 
developed or will develop with single-family homes at a density which 
warrants provision of public water and sewer facilities. [SHMC 
17.24.010] 

Staff Findings: Staff finds that a shop is consistent with the purposes of the R-1 zone. The shop 
building would be accessory to the existing single family dwelling located on the subject 
property.  A shop meets the purpose of the R-1 zone, however the proposed shop is larger than 
the maximum square footage for an accessory structure of 864 square feet. [SHMC 
17.08.030(D)]. The question before the City Council is whether a larger shop building is 
consistent with the purpose of the R-1 zone considering that multiple 864 square foot buildings 
could be established on the property. 

e. If more than one variance is requested or needed, the cumulative effect of the 
variances will result in a project that remains consistent with the purposes of 
the zone; [SHMC 17.88.040(E)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is not requesting more than one variance. 

The application complies with this criterion. 

f. Identified negative impacts resulting from the variance can be mitigated to 
the extent practical; [SHMC 17.88.040(F)] 

Applicant’s Comments: The applicant stated, at the Planning Commission hearing, that there is 
a culvert in his front yard where the gutters from his home drain. There is the possibility the 
shop runoff could utilize this for drainage. The applicant also states that his water and sewer are 
accessed from 7th Avenue not 5th Avenue. [Planning Commission meeting minutes, dated 
November 5, 2018]. 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division recommends that drainage runoff be contained on site 
without flowing directly downslope to the east neighbors or the school grounds.   The school 
may allow drainage from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale.  Staff 
recommends this condition in order to ensure that drainage runoff does not affect the school or 
neighboring properties. 

g. The location, size, design characteristics and other features of the proposal 
shall have minimal adverse impacts on property values, livability of the 
permitted development in the surrounding area, and the natural environment; 
[SHMC 17.88.040(G)] 

Applicant’s Comments: With the size of his property the applicant does not feel that building a 
larger shop would be detrimental to any of the neighbors or the city.  The applicant does not 
believe that it will have a negative effect on property values. 

Staff Findings: Staff received one comment contending that they don’t want a large shop built 
behind their home, and they feel that a large shop would devalue and diminish their privacy 
further. [Attachment E]. 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 16



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  6 

 

h. The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult 
to develop. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying 
zone or overlay zone, city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.88.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any physical circumstances or condition that would make 
an 864 square foot accessory structure difficult to develop. There is not adequate information in 
the record to demonstrate compliance with this condition. 

C. A variance shall be void one year, or other time specifically set by the Planning 
Commission after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the development 
has not been substantially established within that time period. [SHMC 17.88.060] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, if this application is approved, the variance shall 
be void one (1) year after the date of the City Council approval if the use has not been 
substantially established, as defined under SHMC 17.88.060, within that time period.  

 
V. CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings, there is not adequate information in the record to demonstrate 
compliance with all of the criteria for the variance request. Therefore staff recommends that this 
application be denied.  

 

VI. CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

The City Council will hold a public hearing at which it may either approve or deny this 
application.  The action must be based on the applicable review and decision criteria.  

Order: After the City Council makes a decision, staff recommends that the City Council direct 
staff to prepare an order. The Order would memorialize the decision and be placed on the 
Consent Agenda for review. 

Motion: 

After opening the public hearing and receiving testimony, the City Council’s options include the 
following: 

1. Move to approve the application VR18-07 and thereby approve the variance proposed at 
203 5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

2. Move to deny VR18-07 and thereby deny the request for the variance proposed at 203 
5th Avenue; and direct staff to memorialize the decision in an Order that will be 
presented to the City Council on the Consent Agenda during the January 22, 2019 City 
Council Meeting. 

 
3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 

4. Other. 

  

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 17



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR18-07 Appeal  7 

 

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

 

A -  Proposed Variance Plot Plan for 203 5th Avenue 

B -  Aerial Property Map of 203 5th Avenue  

C -  Application 

D -  Planning Commission Meeting Minutes dated November 5, 2018 

E -  Public Comments 

F -  Planning Commission Order of Approval 

G -  Planning Commission Staff Report 

 

The full record is available for review at the City of Sweet Home Community and Economic 
Development Department Office located at City Hall, 1140 12th Ave, Sweet Home, Oregon 
97386. Regular business hours are between 7:00 AM and 4:00 PM, Monday through Friday; 
excluding holidays. 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 18



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 19



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 20



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 21



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 22



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 23



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 24



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 25



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 26



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 27



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 28



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 29



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 30



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 31



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 32



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 33



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 34



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 35



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 36



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 37



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 38



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 39



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 40



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 41

jsorte
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT D



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 42



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 43



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 44



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 45



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 46



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 47



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 48



Notice of a Planning Commission Decision on a Land Use Application 1  
Order of Conditional Approval 

 
OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION 

ON A LAND USE APPLICATION 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

I. REQUEST SUMMARY: The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 
square foot shop building. In the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor 
area for an accessory structure is 864 square feet. [SHMC 17.08.030(D)].  

The subject property is located in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone.     

APPLICANT: James Pickett 

PROPERTY OWNER: James Pickett 

FILE NUMBER(S):  VR 18-07 

PROPERTIES: 203 5th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the Linn 
County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700. 

REVIEW AND  
DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) Sections 17.88.040, 

17.88.050, 17.08.030(D) 

STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg. Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: 
aclegg@sweethomeor.gov 

II. PUBLIC HEARING: The Sweet Home Planning Commission held a public hearing on 
November 5, 2018.  At the hearing the Planning Commission reviewed application VR 18-
07. The Planning Commission received testimony and deliberated on this matter at their 
November 5, 2018 meeting, and passed a motion to approve the application. That motion of 
approval specified a 12-day appeal period. Specific conditions of approval were required, 
and are listed in Section IV of this Order. 

III. FINDINGS OF FACT: The Planning Commission provided an opportunity for testimony at 
the November 5, 2018 public hearing. The Planning Commission considered the information 
in the record, testimony at the public hearing, and the Findings of Fact listed in the Staff 
Report presented to the Planning Commission prior to the November 5, 2018 public hearing. 
The Planning Commission adopted the Findings of Fact listed in Section III of the Staff 
Report dated October 29, 2018, and those are included as Exhibit A to this Order. At their 
meeting, the Planning Commission discussed the minimum size requirements for an 
accessory structure [SHMC 17.88.040].  The applicant stated that he was willing to reduce 
the size of his proposed accessory structure if the commissioners requested it. The Planning 
Commission passed the Variance as proposed in the application by a 3-2 vote in favor of the 
Variance.  The required condition is included in Section IV.

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12

th
 Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 49

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment F



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 50



Notice of a Planning Commission Decision on a Land Use Application 2  
Order of Conditional Approval 

Exhibit A to Order of Conditional Approval for VR 18-07 

 
Findings of Fact Presented in Sections III of the Staff Report presented to the Planning 
Commission for VR 18-07. The review and decision criteria for a variance are listed below in 
bold. Findings and analysis are provided under each review and decision criterion.  
 
A. A determination that the criteria have been met involves the balancing of competing 

and conflicting interests. The following considerations may be used as guidelines in 
the granting authority's deliberations. 

a. Whether the situation that created a need for a variance was created by the 
person requesting the variance; 

b. The economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 
is denied; 

c. An analysis of the physical impacts the development could have, such as 
visual, noise, traffic, and increased potential for drainage, erosion or 
landslide hazards; 

d. Preservation of native tree species such as Oregon White Oak and Pacific 
Madrone over eight inches in caliper or Douglas Fir, Willamette Valley 
Ponderosa Pine, Big Leaf Maple, Incense and Western Red Cedar over 12 
inches in caliper, measured at four and one-half feet above grade on the 
uphill side; 

e. Whether the proposal impacts the aesthetics of the property. [SHMC 
17.88.050(A through E)] 

Staff Findings: The criteria for a variance are listed in Subsection B below. The above section of 
the SHMC provides a list of considerations that may be used when evaluating each of the 
criteria. 

B. The criteria that shall be used in approving, approving with conditions, or denying a 
requested variance will be based on findings with respect to compliance with each 
of the following criteria, if applicable. 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. The 
application complies with this criterion. 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. The 
application complies with this criterion. 

b. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; [SHMC 
17.88.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any goals or policies of the Comprehensive Plan that 
would preclude the proposed variance. 

c. The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of 
the property; [SHMC 17.88.040(C)] 

Staff Findings: As depicted on the applicant’s plot plans, the proposed shop is within setbacks 
and complies with the lot coverage of the R-1 zone. Regardless of the side and rear yard 
requirements of the zone, an accessory structure, excluding detached accessory dwellings, may 
be built to within five feet of side or rear lot line; provided, the structure is more than 70 feet from 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 51



Notice of a Planning Commission Decision on a Land Use Application 3  
Order of Conditional Approval 

the street abutting the front yard and 20 feet from the street abutting the street side yard. 
[SHMC 17.24.050(F)]. The proposed shop would be located 15 feet from the rear property line 
and 5 feet from the side property line. The application complies with this criterion. 

d. The requested variance is consistent with the purposes of the zone; [SHMC 
17.88.040(D)] 

i. The purpose of the R-3 zone is to provide areas suitable and desirable 
for single-family homes, duplexes on corner lots, condominiums, town 
houses and appropriate community facilities. [SHMC 17.30.010] 

Staff Findings: Staff finds that the proposed shop is consistent with the purposes of the R-1 
zone. The shop building would be an accessory to the existing single family dwelling located on 
the subject property. The application complies with this criterion. 

e. If more than one variance is requested or needed, the cumulative effect of the 
variances will result in a project that remains consistent with the purposes of 
the zone; [SHMC 17.88.040(E)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is not requesting more than one variance. The application 
complies with this criterion. 

f. Identified negative impacts resulting from the variance can be mitigated to 
the extent practical; [SHMC 17.88.040(F)] 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division recommends that drainage runoff be contained on site 
without flowing directly downslope to the east neighbors or the school grounds.   The school 
may allow drainage from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale.  Staff 
recommends this condition in order to ensure that drainage runoff does not affect the school or 
neighboring properties. The application complies with this criterion. 

g. The location, size, design characteristics and other features of the proposal 
shall have minimal adverse impacts on property values, livability of the 
permitted development in the surrounding area, and the natural environment; 
[SHMC 17.88.040(G)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any significant adverse impacts on property values, 
neighborhood livability, and the natural environment that would result from construction of the 
proposed shop. The application complies with this criterion. 

h. The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult 
to develop. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying 
zone or overlay zone, city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.88.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any physical circumstances or condition that would make 
the proposed shop difficult to develop. The application complies with this criterion. 

C. A variance shall be void one year, or other time specifically set by the Planning 
Commission, after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the 
development has not been substantially established within that time period. [SHMC 
17.88.060] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, if this application is approved, the variance shall 
be void one (1) year after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the use has not been 
substantially established, as defined under SHMC 17.88.060, within that time period. 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 52



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 53



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  1 
 

 

 

 

 
Staff Report Presented to the Planning Commission 

REQUEST: The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot shop 
building. In the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory 
structure is 864 square feet. [SHMC 17.08.030(D)].  
The subject property is located in the Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone.   
APPLICANT: James Pickett 
PROPERTY OWNER: James Pickett 
FILE NUMBER(S):  VR 18-07 
PROPERTIES: 203 5th Avenue, Sweet Home, OR 97386; Identified on the Linn 

County Assessor’s Map as 13S01E31CD Tax Lot 700.  
REVIEW AND  

DECISION CRITERIA:  Sweet Home Municipal Code (SHMC) Sections 17.88.040, 
17.88.050, 17.08.030(D) 

HEARING DATE &TIME: November 5, 2018 at 7:00 PM 
HEARING LOCATION: City Hall Annex, Council Chambers behind City Hall at 1140 12th 

Avenue, Sweet Home, Oregon 
STAFF CONTACT: Angela Clegg. Phone: (541) 367-8113; Email: 

aclegg@sweethomeor.gov 
REPORT DATE: October 29, 2018 

 

I. PROJECT AND PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

The applicant is requesting a variance in order to build a 1,728 square foot personal shop. In the 
Residential Low-Density (R-1) Zone the maximum floor area for an accessory structure is 864 
square feet.  
SHMC 17.08.030(D) requires:  An accessory structure shall be detached from all other buildings 
by at least six feet. Accessory structures shall have a maximum floor area of 864 square feet. 
 
ZONING AND COMPREHENSIVE PLAN DESIGNATIONS: 
Property Zoning Designation Comprehensive Plan Designation 

Subject Property Residential Low-Density (R-1) Low Density Residential 
Property North Residential Low-Density (R-1) Public 
Property East Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

City of Sweet Home 
1140 12th Avenue 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-8113 

Fax 541-367-5113 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

 

Community and Economic Development Department 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 54

jsorte
Typewriter
Attachment G



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  2 
 

Property South Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 
Property West Residential Low-Density (R-1) Medium Density Residential 

 
Floodplain Based on a review of the FEMA FIRM Maps; Panel 41043C0913G dated 

September 29, 2010, the subject property is not located in the 100-year 
floodplain.  

Wetlands: The subject property does not contain wetlands that are inventoried on the 
Sweet Home Local Wetlands Inventory or the National Wetlands Inventory 
(NWI) Map. 

Access: The subject property has frontage along 5th Avenue.  
Services: The subject property has access to city water and sewer. 
Street: 5th Avenue is a local street and has a 50 foot right-of-way.   
 
TIMELINES AND HEARING NOTICE:  
Application Received:     October 3, 2018 
Application Deemed Complete:   October 8, 2018 
Notice Distributed to Neighboring Property  
Owners Within 100 feet and Service Agencies: October 16, 2018 
Notice Published in New Era Newspaper:  October 22, 2018 
Date of Planning Commission Hearing:  November 5, 2018 
120-Day Processing Deadline:   January 31, 2019 
 
 

II. COMMENTS 

Engineering Division: Project & Location: 
 Request VR 18-07 is for a Variance to build a 1,728 SqFt shop
 building at 203 5th Avenue, 13S01E31CD-700.  Construction will  

be 15ft from the east, and 5ft from the north property lines.  The 
property has a paved driveway access to the public frontage to 5th 
Ave to the west, which has 12ft of AC pavement, shallow grass 
swale drainage, and a 50ft wide right-of-way.   
 
Streets & Stormwater: 
The property naturally grades and slopes to the north, with all 
drainage running appearing to run onto the adjacent school 
property, or the properties on 7th Ave.  A drainage swale system 
on the school property used to run northerly along the property 
lines of the adjacent properties, and may still be there.   
 
Water & Sanitary: 
The property is served by sewer with the main line in the back 
yards under the common line between the school grounds and the 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 55



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  3 
 

backyards off 7th Ave.   The city has an easement on the west 
property line by public utility placement, with a width generally 12ft 
centered on the property line so that 6 ft would be on either 
side.  The proposed structure would not encroach into the 
easement.   The water service is from 7th Ave , with the line 
running between two driveways of adjacent properties.   

 
Comments & Recommendations: 
Engineering Division would recommend that drainage runoff be 
contained on site without flowing directly downslope to the east 
neighbors or the school grounds.   The school may allow drainage 
from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale. 
-Joseph Graybill, PE, City of Sweet Home 

 

Building Division: The Building Program has no issues with this variance request. 
 
OR Dept. State Lands It is unlikely there are wetlands in that corner of the tax lot where the 

shop is proposed to be built. 
 -Lauren Brown, Wetland Ecologist 
 
 

III. REVIEW AND DECISION CRITERIA  

The review and decision criteria for a variance are listed below in bold. Findings and analysis 
are provided under each review and decision criterion.  
A. A determination that the criteria have been met involves the balancing of competing 

and conflicting interests. The following considerations may be used as guidelines in 
the granting authority's deliberations. [SHMC 17.88.050(A-E)] 

a. Whether the situation that created a need for a variance was created by the 
person requesting the variance; 

b. The economic impact upon the person requesting the variance if the request 
is denied; 

c. An analysis of the physical impacts the development could have, such as 
visual, noise, traffic, and increased potential for drainage, erosion or 
landslide hazards; 

d. Preservation of native tree species such as Oregon White Oak and Pacific 
Madrone over eight inches in caliper or Douglas Fir, Willamette Valley 
Ponderosa Pine, Big Leaf Maple, Incense and Western Red Cedar over 12 
inches in caliper, measured at four and one-half feet above grade on the 
uphill side; 

e. Whether the proposal impacts the aesthetics of the property.  

Staff Findings: The criteria for a variance are listed in Subsection B below. The above section of 
the SHMC provides a list of considerations that may be used when evaluating each of the 
criteria. 
B. The criteria that shall be used in approving, approving with conditions, or denying a 

requested variance will be based on findings with respect to compliance with each 
of the following criteria, if applicable. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 56



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  4 
 

a. The development resulting from an approved variance will not be detrimental 
to public health or safety; [SHMC 17.88.040(A)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any reasons why the applicant’s proposed shop would be 
detrimental to public health or safety.  Use would be those permitted in the R-1 zone. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

b. The request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan; [SHMC 
17.88.040(B)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any goals or policies of the Comprehensive Plan that 
would preclude the proposed variance. 

c. The request is the minimum variance necessary to make reasonable use of 
the property; [SHMC 17.88.040(C)] 

Staff Findings: As depicted on the applicant’s plot plans, the proposed shop is within setbacks 
and complies with the lot coverage of the R-1 zone. Regardless of the side and rear yard 
requirements of the zone, an accessory structure, excluding detached accessory dwellings, may 
be built to within five feet of side or rear lot line; provided, the structure is more than 70 feet from 
the street abutting the front yard and 20 feet from the street abutting the street side yard. 
[SHMC 17.24.050(F)]. The proposed shop would be located 15 feet from the rear property line 
and 5 feet from the side property line.  
The application complies with this criterion. 

d. The requested variance is consistent with the purposes of the zone; [SHMC 
17.88.040(D)] 

i. The purpose of the R-1 zone is to provide areas suitable and desirable 
for single-family homes, associated public service uses and duplexes 
on corner lots. The R-1 zone is most appropriate in areas which have 
developed or will develop with single-family homes at a density which 
warrants provision of public water and sewer facilities. [SHMC 
17.24.010] 

Staff Findings: Staff finds that the proposed shop is consistent with the purposes of the R-1 
zone. The shop building would be an accessory to the existing single family dwelling located on 
the subject property. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

e. If more than one variance is requested or needed, the cumulative effect of the 
variances will result in a project that remains consistent with the purposes of 
the zone; [SHMC 17.88.040(E)] 

Staff Findings: The applicant is not requesting more than one variance. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

f. Identified negative impacts resulting from the variance can be mitigated to 
the extent practical; [SHMC 17.88.040(F)] 

Staff Findings: The Engineering Division recommends that drainage runoff be contained on site 
without flowing directly downslope to the east neighbors or the school grounds.   The school 
may allow drainage from the perimeter properties to flow into the existing swale.  Staff 
recommends this condition in order to ensure that drainage runoff does not affect the school or 
neighboring properties. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 57



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  5 
 

g. The location, size, design characteristics and other features of the proposal 
shall have minimal adverse impacts on property values, livability of the 
permitted development in the surrounding area, and the natural environment; 
[SHMC 17.88.040(G)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any significant adverse impacts on property values, 
neighborhood livability, and the natural environment that would result from construction of the 
proposed shop. 
The application complies with this criterion. 

h. The property has a physical circumstance or condition that makes it difficult 
to develop. The request complies with the requirements of the underlying 
zone or overlay zone, city codes, state and federal laws. [SHMC 17.88.040(H)] 

Staff Findings: Staff has not identified any physical circumstances or condition that would make 
the proposed shop difficult to develop. 
The application complies with this criterion. 
C. A variance shall be void one year, or other time specifically set by the Planning 

Commission, after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the 
development has not been substantially established within that time period. [SHMC 
17.88.060] 

Staff Findings: As required under this section, if this application is approved, the variance shall 
be void one (1) year after the date of the Planning Commission approval if the use has not been 
substantially established, as defined under SHMC 17.88.060, within that time period.  
 

 
IV. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

The Planning Commission will hold a public hearing at which it may either approve or deny the 
application(s).  If the application is denied, the action must be based on the applicable review 
and decision criteria.  
Appeal Period: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission’s decision on this matter be 
subject to a 12-day appeal period from the date that the notice of decision is mailed.  
Order: After the Planning Commission makes a decision, staff recommends that the Planning 
Commission direct staff to prepare an order that is signed by the Chairperson of the Planning 
Commission. The Order would memorialize the decision and provide the official list of conditions 
(if any) that apply to the approval; if the application is approved. 
Conditions of Approval: If approved, the Planning Commission may impose conditions of 
approval. As discussed in Section III above, staff recommends the following condition: 

1. Drainage runoff be contained on site without flowing directly downslope to the east 
neighbors or the school grounds.   

Motion: 

After opening the public hearing and receiving testimony, the Planning Commission’s options 
include the following: 

1. Move to approve application VR 18-07 and thereby permit the variance proposed at 203 
5th Avenue; adopting the findings of fact listed in Section III of the staff report condition of 
approval, the setting of a 12-day appeal period from the date of the mailing of the 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 58



  

 
Staff Report for Application VR 18-07  6 
 

decision, and hereby direct staff to prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to 
memorialize this decision. 

2. Move to deny application VR 18-07 and thereby deny the request for variances  
proposed at 203 5th Avenue; adopting the following findings (specify), the setting of a 12-
day appeal period from the date of the mailing of the decision, and hereby direct staff to 
prepare an order to be signed by the Chair to memorialize this decision. 
 

3. Move to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain (specify); or 
4. Other. 

 

 

 

VII. ATTACHMENTS 

 

A -  Proposed Variance Plot Plan for 203 5th Avenue 
B -  Aerial Property Map of 203 5th Avenue  
C -  Application 

 
The full record is available for review at the City of Sweet Home Community and Economic 
Development Department Office located at City Hall, 1140 12th Ave, Sweet Home, Oregon 
97386. Regular business hours are between 7:00 AM and 4:00 PM, Monday through Friday; 
excluding holidays. 
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 59



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 60



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 61



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA:  
January 8, 2019 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  
Jerry Sorte, CED Director 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Sweetheart Run Street Closure 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Map of Proposed Street Closure 
Location 
Street Closure Resolution 
 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  X  RESOLUTION 
      MOTION 
       OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA:   
 
Request for City Council to adopt the attached Resolution concerning a temporary street closure 
during the Sweetheart Run at Sankey Park on February 9, 2019. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
 
The “Sweetheart of a Run in a Sweetheart of a Town” event is scheduled for Saturday, February 
9, 2019 at Sankey Park on 14th Avenue.  Staff is expecting several hundred participants at the 
event in addition to vendors who will be setting up in the park area prior to the event.  It is 
recommended that pass-thru traffic be rerouted away from this area. Residential access would 
be allowed.  Participants would be instructed to park in parking lots nearby and along the streets 
around 14th Avenue, but not on 14th Avenue. Vendors would be instructed to park in upper 
Sankey Park.  Handicapped participants would be allowed to park in the Sankey Park parking 
lot upon arriving.  
  
The closure would allow runners an area to warm up and reduce safety issues associated with 
pedestrians and vehicles.  If approved, letters will be sent to the homes along 14th Avenue 
informing them of this event and the subsequent closure.  Traffic would continue to be allowed 
along Hawthorne, Grape and Fir Streets.    
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:   
 
Ensuring the safety of participants during the Sweetheart Run by closing 14th Avenue from Elm 
Street to Kalmia. Residents in the area would be notified of the closure.  Residents along the 
routes would be notified of the event the week prior with yard signs along the routes. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
  
● City of Sweet Home Residents located around Sankey Park and along the two routes 
● Participants, families and vendors attending the event. 
 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  
 

1. Residents Adjacent to the Street Closure - Residents in the area would be notified of the 
closure.  Residents along the routes would be notified of the event the week prior with 
yard signs along the routes. 

2. Police Department – notified of event for possible traffic issues. 
3. Fire Department – attending the event with ambulance in case services are needed. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 62



4. Street Department – staff has helped during past events with set up of event site, 
delivering signage and equipment, course marshalling, picking up signage and tear 
down of event site. 

5. Planning and Community Development – organizing and hosting the event 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION:  
 
Consideration of safety for event attendees, while not inconveniencing local neighbors for a 
significant length of time. 
 
OPTIONS:  

1. Do nothing.   
2. Adopt resolution. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council make a motion to adopt this resolution to establish a 
temporary street closure of 14th Avenue west of Sankey Park from Elm Street to Kalmia Street 
between the hours of 8:00 am to 1:00 pm on Saturday, February 9, 2019. 
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 63



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 64



 

RESOLUTION NO. 1 FOR 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING STREET CLOSURES AND RESTRICTIONS. 

WHEREAS, traffic patterns and parking issues need to be addressed to safely accommodate 
the Sweetheart Run event; and 

WHEREAS, Sweet Home Municipal Code 10.04.030 provides that the City Council may, by 
resolution, establish or alter traffic and parking control; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Sweet Home does resolve as follows: 

Traffic regulations shall be kept in effect as follows: 

A. From 8:00 AM to 1:00 PM on February 9, 2019, 14th Avenue from Kalmia Street to Elm 
Street shall be closed and blocked off to vehicular traffic at the direction of the City 
Manager or his designated representative. 

B. Residential access will be allowed. 
C. Appropriate signs or other markings shall be installed by the Public Works Department to 

carry safely out the provisions of this resolution, and shall become effective immediately 
upon the installation of such barricades, signs, or other markings. 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 8th day of January, 2019. 

 

         
 _______________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 65



 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 
 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
January 8, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Brandon Neish, Finance Director 
REVIEWED BY:   
Ray Towry, City Manager 

TITLE:   
Revision to Fixed Assets  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
SH Financial Policies w/revisions 
GFOA Best Practice – Capital Assets 
Various Cities’ Financial Policies 
Oregon Accounting Manual #15.60.10 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
  X   RESOLUTION 
  _   MOTION 
   _  OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS RCA: 
To revise the city’s threshold for capitalizing an individual item and review other grammar 
changes. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT: 
According to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), the term capital assets is 
used to describe assets that are used in operations and that have initial lives extending beyond 
a single reporting period. The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) defines a 
capital asset as a major asset that typically includes land, improvements to land, easements, 
buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of art and historical 
treasures and infrastructure. 
 
Capitalization is, of its nature, primarily a financial reporting issue. That is, a government’s 
principal concern in establishing specific capitalization thresholds ought to be the anticipated 
information needs of the users of the government’s external financial reports. Furthermore, 
practice has demonstrated that capital asset management systems that attempt to incorporate 
data on numerous smaller items are often costly and difficult to maintain and operate. 
 
Under the rules developed by the (GASB), which dictates financial practices for government 
agencies, capital assets must be reported annually on the city’s financial statements along with 
the accumulated depreciation. This requires annual inspections of all items on the city’s fixed 
asset list and review by Sweet Home’s independent auditors. The City of Sweet Home’s current 
Financial Policy outlines that the threshold at which an item is capitalized is $200. This threshold 
is extremely low in accounting standards and does not represent best practice. 
 
GFOA recommends the following when setting a threshold for capitalization of items: 

• Potentially capitalizable items should only be capitalized if they have an estimated useful 
life of at least two years following the date of acquisition; 

• In no case should a government establish a capitalization threshold of less than $5,000 
for any individual item. 

  

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 66



Other governments in the area have set their capital thresholds at the following: 
• City of Corvallis - $5,000/item 
• City of Lebanon - $5,000/item 
• City of Stayton - $10,000/item 
• City of Albany - $10,000/item (increased from $5,000 in October 2018) 

 
• State of Oregon - $5,000/item 

 

Additional changes to the Financial Policies include changing the working of Section I, 
subsection 2 and Section VI, subsection 1 as well as eliminating Section VI, subsection 2. 
 
Under Section I, subsection 2, the city currently budgets for personnel, materials & services and 
capital expenditures. These budgets are incorporated into the budget process and displayed on 
budget worksheets. However, state law does not require separating out personnel and material 
& services expenses from capital. Instead, local budget law requires that cities budget 
expenditure authority at a fund and department level. Restricting further, as the policy currently 
does by including the words “explicitly recognized and incorporated” ensures that funds are 
spent on specific items as reviewed by the Budget Committee and Council but does not allow 
the flexibility to make expenditure changes during the year to adapt to changing circumstances 
without a supplemental budget. 
 
Section VI, subsection 1 defines how assets are managed within the city, specifically the 
surplusage of these items. This policy is not in line with the Sweet Home Municipal Code which 
states that “city surplus property means any personal property belonging to or owned by the city 
which has been determined by the City Manager or his or her designate to be of no further use 
to the city.” 
 
Subsection 2 related to the funding of long-term assets such as the new City Hall, vehicles and 
other larger purchases. This policy limits the funding of long-term assets to be completed 
through General Obligation Bonds, SDC’s proportionate equity asset share, grants and gifts or 
volunteer contributions. While these funding resources are valuable resources, this policy 
ignores other funding resources such as interfund loans, revenue bonds and other funding 
options. 

 

THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM: 
Should the City increase the threshold for capitalizing assets from $200 per item to match the 
state’s limit and make additional changes to the policy document to comply with state laws and 
the Sweet Home Municipal Code? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

• City of Sweet Home citizens – Citizens reviewing the City’s annual audit documents 
should be able to see the long-term assets the city has purchased for their benefit – 
roads, water distribution and collections systems, large equipment, land, buildings and 
more. 

• City of Sweet Home City Council – Council reviews the City’s financial documents each 
year and signs off on the independent audit and related statements. 

• City of Sweet Home staff – City staff physically counts the items listed in financial 
documents as fixed assets and provides the calculations for an item’s accumulated 
depreciation to be used in financial reports. 

• Independent Auditors – The City’s independent auditors review transactions annually 
listed as capital purchases and constructs the city’s annual financial report required by 
state law. 
  

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 67



ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
The issue with having a low capital threshold is two-fold. First, tracking these assets annually is 
a significant amount of work for the Finance Department. The City currently has 858 active 
items listed as fixed assets which include, but is not limited to: Tasers, chairs, shredders, file 
cabinets, vacuums, chain saws, credenzas, vehicles, drills, computers and scanners. GASB 
rules and city policy require an annual count of these items. Additionally, whenever these items 
must be removed from the system, city staff must bring a surplus resolution to the Council to 
dispose of the items regardless of status (i.e. destroyed, irreparable, etc.). 
 
Second, all these items must be annually depreciated by Finance staff and audited by an 
independent auditor. As described by the GFOA, smaller items are often costly and difficult to 
maintain and operate with when listed as a fixed asset. The $200 threshold makes for difficult 
tracking in the financial report and requires a significant amount of time by city staff and auditors 
alike. 
 
The other revisions proposed change the language of the policy to match that which already 
exists in other places. There are no financial impacts as a result of the changes proposed 
beyond the capitalization threshold. 
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
A stable solution for capital assets requires increasing the threshold to a more manageable 
figure in accordance with recommendations from financial organizations and auditors. The 
revision of this policy to tie the capital asset threshold with that of the state of Oregon’s rules 
ensures that the City complies with GASB rules and aids in producing a clean, clear financial 
report annually. 
 
The state of Oregon dictates Local Budget Law (though does not preclude municipalities from 
imposing stricter regulations) and the Sweet Home Municipal Code already contains language 
regarding the use and disposition of assets. The City Financial Policy should match rules that 
already exist or, in the case of the disposition of assets, the Sweet Home Municipal Code to 
reflect policy. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing. Council could choose to do nothing with this proposal. The city would 
continue to capitalize items that exceed $200 and keep the existing policy document as-
is.  
 

2. Revise the City of Sweet Home Financial Policy to include language increasing the 
capitalization threshold and tie policy to state and local regulations. Under Section VI of 
the policy, staff has revised #1 to attach the disposal of assets to the Sweet Home 
Municipal Code, #2 by removing the requirement to fund long-term assets using outside 
funds and #5 to attach the capitalization threshold to the Oregon Accounting Manual 
(OAM) #15.60.10. Section I has also been revised to tie policy to Oregon Local Budget 
Law. 

 
3. Revise the City of Sweet Home Financial Policy with a different threshold. Council could 

choose a specific dollar amount for the capitalization threshold rather than use the 
state’s policy as a basis. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends option 2, a motion to approve Resolution No. 2 for 2019, A Resolution 
Adopting Policy Revisions in the City’s Financial Policy. The recommended threshold represents 
a financial best practice and will aid in the development and preparation for the annual audit 
both by city staff and the independent auditors. Additional changes also clear up conflicting 
regulations between the state and the city. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 68



CITY OF SWEET HOME 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POLICIES 

The purpose of this section is to present the general guidelines the City of Sweet Home follows in managing its 

financial, operational and budgetary affairs.  These are general statements representing long-standing 

principles that have guided the City in maintaining its financial stability. 

 

I. GENERAL  

 

1. The City organization intends to carry out the City Council’s goals, objectives and policies through a 

service delivery system financed through its Operating and Capital Budgets. 

 

2. The relationship between the Operating and Capital Budgets will be explicitly recognized and 

incorporated into the budget process. Funding for these budgets should be sufficient to provide 

municipal operating services and maintenance or enhancement of fixed assets needed to support public 

demand for City services. 

 

3. The City will seek positive steps to improve the productivity of its programs and employees and will 

investigate ways to eliminate duplicative functions within the city government and between the City of 

Sweet Home and other public agencies in the community.  Reviews of the efficiency and effectiveness 

of certain City services will be periodically undertaken when applicable.  To help measure effectiveness 

and efficiencies, a reporting mechanism highlighting the service efforts and accomplishments of the 

City’s major services should be developed.  

 

4. Whenever feasible, government activities will be considered enterprises if so doing will increase 

efficiency of service delivery or recover the cost of providing the service from the benefiting entity by 

user fees.   

 

5. Attempts to maintain adequate annual reserves for all known liabilities, including employee leave 

balances, will be encouraged. 

 

6. Efforts will be coordinated with other governmental agencies to achieve common policy objectives, 

share the cost of providing governmental services on an equitable basis and support favorable 

legislation at the state and federal level. 

 

7. The City may seek out, apply for and effectively administer federal, state and foundation grants-in-aid 

that address the City’s current priorities and policy objectives. 

 

8. The City will encourage and participate in economic development efforts to create job opportunities 

and strengthen the local economy. 

 

9. The City will ensure that the appropriate retirement funds are adequately funded and operated for the 

exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. 

 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 69



II. REVENUES  

 

 

1. The City of Sweet Home will, whenever possible, try to maintain a diversified and stable revenue 

 system to shelter it from short-run fluctuations in any one source. 

 

2. The City will follow an aggressive policy of collecting revenues. 

 

3. When practical, the City will establish all user charge fees at a level related to the full costs (operating,  

direct, indirect and capital) of providing the service.  The City will review fees/charges periodically 

and/or when required by Ordinance, law, or other. 

 

4. The City will consider market rates and charges levied by other municipalities of similar size for like 

services in establishing rates, fees and charges as a “comparison” only. 

 

5. Enterprise and Internal Service operations will strive to be self-supporting. 

 

 

III. EXPENDITURES  

 

1. The City of Sweet Home shall operate on a current funding basis.  Expenditures shall 

be budgeted and controlled so as not to exceed current revenues plus the planned use of fund balances 

accumulated through prior years. 

 

2. The City shall take immediate corrective actions if at any time during the fiscal year expenditures and 

revenue re-estimates are such that an operating deficit is projected at year-end.  Corrective actions can 

include a hiring freeze, expenditure reductions, fee increases or use of contingencies.  Expenditure 

deferrals into the following fiscal year, short-term loans, or use of one-time revenue sources to balance 

the budget shall be avoided if at all possible. 

 

3. The City Manager may undertake periodic staff and third-party reviews of City programs for both 

efficiency and effectiveness.  Public/Private Partnerships, Privatization, and/or contracting with other 

government agencies can be evaluated as alternatives to service delivery.   

 

4. The City shall make every effort to maximize any discounts offered by creditors/vendors.  Staff shall be 

encouraged to use competitive bidding to attain the best possible price on goods and services when 

feasible and not otherwise required by rule/law. 

 

 

IV. CONTINGENCIES/FUND BALANCES 

       

 

The City is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to 

reduce service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenditures. 

 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 70



1. General Fund: 

- Contingency, minimum of $50,000 preferred 

- Ending Fund Balance, needs to cover four months of general operating services 

- Avoid borrowing from other funds 

 

2. Police Operating Levy Fund: 

- Contingency, 3% of operating expenses 

- Ending Fund Balance, needs to cover four months of general operating services 

- Avoid borrowing from other funds 

 

     3.  Library Operating Levy Fund: 

- Contingency, 3% of operating expenses 

- Ending Fund Balance, needs to cover four months of general operating services 

- Avoid borrowing from other funds 

 

     4.  Depreciation/Capital Replacement Funds: 

- Continue to maintain equipment and building reserves 

- Create sufficient dollars to allow for replacement without major bond financing 

-  Have an investment strategy to guarantee capital upgrades 

 

     5.  Develop Community Priorities: 

 -  Determine what are mandated, essential and desired services 

-  Utilize public input (i.e., surveys, radio, public meetings, neighborhood meetings) 

 

All operating funds are encouraged to maintain a contingency. 

 

 FUND BALANCE DEFINITIONS: 

 

GASB 54 defines fund balances for financial reporting to be classified as follows: 

 

1. Non-spendable –Represents assets that are nonliquid (such as inventory) or legally or contractually 

required to be maintained intact (such as the principal amount of an endowment). 

 

2. Restricted – When constraints are placed on the use of resources for a specific purpose by enabling 

legislation (legally enforceable), external parties or constitutional provisions. 

 

3. Committed –When constraints are created by the governing body on how it will send its resources.  

These are enacted via legislation, resolution or ordinance and are in place as of the end of the fiscal 

period.  The constraints remain binding until formally rescinded or changed by the same method the 

constraints were created.  The difference between Restricted and Committed is that under Committed, 

the governing body can removed constraints it has imposed upon itself. 

 

4. Assigned –Designation of amounts by either the governing body or the staff (if authorized) to be used 

for a specific purpose narrower than the purpose of the fund. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 71



5. Unassigned – The excess of total ending fund balance over nonspendable, restricted, committed and 

assigned amounts.  Only the General Fund has an unassigned category since money remaining in any 

other fund is automatically designated or assigned to the purposes of that fund.  

 

AUTHORIZATION FOR SPECIFIC MEMBERS OF MANAGEMENT TO ASSIGN FUND 

BALANCES: 

 

The Finance Director shall be responsible for monitoring and reporting the City’s various reserves and 

fund balance categories.  The City Manager/Budget Officer is directed to make recommendations to the 

Council on the use of reserve funds both as an element of the annual operating budget submission and 

as needed throughout the year.  Annually, the City Manager/Budget Officer shall be responsible for 

identification of resource assignments within the proposed budget document.  

 

SPENDING PRIORITY FOR FUND BALANCES: 

 

When fund balances are available for use, it is the City’s policy to follow GASB 54 requirements to use 

restricted balances first, committed balances, then assigned balances for purposes which they can be 

used for.  The spendable unrestricted revenue amounts in the special revenue funds, capital projects 

funds and debt service funds are committed to be used for the purpose for which the fund was 

established. 

 

COMMITMENT OF FUND BALANCE: 

 

Commitment of fund balance shall be done through adoption of a resolution by the City Council.  

Further commitments of fund balance may be modified or rescinded only through approval of the City 

Council via resolution.  

  

 

V.  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

       

1. The City will develop a multi-year plan for Capital improvements, update it annually and make all 

capital improvements in accordance with the plan. 

 

2. The City will strive to maintain its physical assets at a level adequate to protect the City’s capital  

investmentscapital investments and to minimize future maintenance and replacement costs. The budget 

will provide for adequate maintenance and orderly replacement of capital assets from current revenues 

where possible. 

 

3. Capital projects should conform to the following criteria: 

 

• will be part of an approved City plan; 

• will be part on an adopted maintenance and/or replacement schedule; 

• will minimize operating costs; and 

• will be selected according to the established Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 72



The capital budget process works in conjunction with the regular operating budget process.  CIP projects are 

flagged as funded or unfunded depending on whether or not the forecasted operating budget can support or 

fund the project.  All funded CIP projects are included in the operating budget for the current budget year. 

 

VI. CAPITAL ASSET MANAGEMENT 

        

1. City assets will not be degraded, given away or allowed to deteriorate except by action of the councilin 

accordance with SHMC Chapter 3.08. 

 

2. Funding new long-term capital assets will be the responsibility of the community as a whole and should 

be funded through general obligation bonds, SDC’s proportionate equity asset shares, grants and gifts or 

volunteer contributions when appropriate. 

 

3. New private development in the city that requires increased capacity or places increased demand on the 

community must purchase an equity asset share.  This share is based on the development’s 

proportionate share of the current replacement value of the existing assets required by the development 

including capacity expansion required to serve the new development. 

 

4. To the extent allowed by law, system development charges will be designed to recapture from private 

development the full cost of community assets in place at the time of the development and the necessary 

expansion of those systems caused by increased demand on those assets. 

 

5. The capitalization threshold used in determining if a given asset qualifies for capitalization is $200 per 

itemequal to that defined in the Oregon Accounting Manual (OAM) Number 15.60.10. 

 

6. The Finance Department shall organize a physical count/inspection of all capital assets as of each fiscal 

year end, June 30. 

 

7. Adequate insurance shall be maintained on all capital assets consistent with the results of the annual 

physical count/inspection. 

 

8. GASB 34: The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has required local governments to 

report infrastructure and depreciation on all capital assets.  The City implemented these policies as of 

July 1, 2002. 

 

 

VII. DEBT  

 

1. The City will confine long-term borrowing to capital improvements. 

 

2. The City will follow a policy of full disclosure on every financial report and bond prospectus. 

 

3. General obligation debt will not be used for self-supporting enterprise activity. 

 

4. The City will ensure that its debt margins are within the 3% TCV (true cash value) limitation as set forth 

in ORS 287.004. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 73



 

5. The City will use voter-approved general obligation debt to fund general-purpose public improvements 

that cannot be financed from current revenues. 

 

 

VIII. INVESTMENTS  

 

1. The City of Sweet Home’s investment objectives are: 

• In compliance with all applicable statutes and legal provisions. 

• Preservation of capital and protection of principal. 

• Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet operating requirements. 

• Avoidance of imprudent credit, market and speculative risk. 

• Attainment of a market rate-of-return throughout all economic and fiscal cycles 

 

2. Safekeeping shall be consistent with modern investment, banking and commercial practices and may 

include physical possession, book entry and automated recordation. 

 

3. Except for funds requiring special handling (i.e. bond proceeds subject to arbitrage), investments other 

than with the Local Government Investment Pool and FDIC insured Market Link CDs not to exceed 7 

year terms require the express approval of the City Administration and Finance Committee. 

 

4. Diversification of the City’s investment portfolio will be consistent with the percent limitations under 

(ORS 294.035 (i.e. 5%/35 maximums for corporate indebtedness) to include certain credit rating 

minimums.  

 

IX. ACCOUNTING, AUDITING & FINANCIAL REPORTING  

 

1. The City will prepare and present regular reports that analyze, evaluate and forecast the City’s financial 

performance and economic conditions. 

 

2. When needed, the City will seek out the assistance of qualified financial advisors and consultants in the 

management and administration of the City’s financial functions. 

 

3. An independent audit will be performed annually. 

 

4. The City will issue annual financial reports in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

(GAAP) as outlined in the Governmental Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting (CAFR) 

publication. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 74



 

City of Corvallis 
 
Financial Policies - Council Policy 
 
Policy # 10.09 
 
Financial Policies -- Definitions  

 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 
Definitions: Accrual Basis of Accounting - The basis of accounting under which transactions 

are recognized when they occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 Appropriation - Legal authorization granted by City Council to make expenditures 

and incur obligations. 
 Assessed Value - The value set by the County assessor on real and personal 

taxable property as a basis for levying taxes. 
 Assessments - An amount levied against a property for improvements specifically 

benefiting that property. 
 Balanced Budget - A budget in which the resources are equal to or greater than 

the requirements in each/every fund. 
 Benefits - Employee benefits mandated by state and federal law, union contracts, 

and/or Council policy.  The most common forms of fringe benefits are pension 
plans, health and life insurance, vacation, sick and holiday leave, deferred 
compensation, automobile allowances, disability insurance, and educational and 
incentive pay. 

 Bonds - A written promise to pay a sum of money (principal or face value) at a 
future date (maturity date) along with periodic interest paid at a specified 
percentage of the principal (interest rate).  Bonds are typically used to finance 
long-term capital improvements. 

 Budget - A plan of financial operation, embodying an estimate of proposed 
expenditures for a given period (typically a fiscal year) and the proposed means 
of financing them (revenue estimates).  Upon approval by the City Council, the 
budget appropriation resolution is the legal basis for expenditures in the budget 
year. 

 CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) - Prepared at the close of each 
fiscal year and published no later than December 31 of each year to show the 
actual audited condition of the City's funds and serves as the official public record 
of the City's financial status and activities. 

 Capital Budget - A plan of proposed capital expenditures and the means of 
financing them.  The capital budget is usually enacted as part of the complete 
annual budget which includes both operating and capital outlays.  The capital 
budget should be based on a capital improvement program. 

 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) - A plan for capital expenditures to be 
incurred each year over a fixed period of several future years, setting forth each 
capital project, identifying the expected beginning and ending date for each 
project, the amount to be expended in each year, and the method of financing 
those expenditures. 

 Capital Outlay - Expenditures for operating equipment drawn from the operating 
budget.  Capital outlay items normally include equipment that will last longer than 
one year and having an initial cost above $5,000.  Capital outlay does not include 
capital budget expenditures for construction of infrastructure such as streets, 
buildings, or bridges. 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 75

bneish
Highlight



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 76



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 77



City of Stayton Fiscal Polices  Page 5 of 10 
2016

adopted budget. Each Department or 
Division Manager or Director will be 
responsible for the administration of 
his/her department/program budget. This 
includes accomplishing the goals and 
objectives incorporated into the budget 
and monitoring each department/division 
budget for compliance with spending 
limitations. 
 

3.2 The City Administrator is to administer 
budgetary expenditure control at the 
appropriation level. Any increase in a 
budget appropriation requires City 
Council approval. 

 
3.3 All purchases of goods and services must 

comply with the City’s Purchasing Policies, 
guidelines and procedures and with State 
laws and regulations. 

 
3.4 All compensation planning and collective 

bargaining will include analyses of total 
cost of compensation, which includes 
analysis of salary increases, health 
benefits, pension contributions, and other 
fringe benefits. City management will only 
propose operating personnel costs that 
can be supported by continuing operating 
revenues. 

 
3.5 City staff shall make every effort to 

control expenditures to ensure City 
services and programs provided to its 
citizens and taxpayers are cost effective 
and efficient. Expenditures that will 
reduce future costs will be encouraged. 

 
4 Capital Improvement Policies 
 

4.1 Annually, the City will approve a 5-year 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), 
congruent with the adoption of its annual 
budget. The CIP shall provide details on 
each capital project: its estimated costs, 
sources of financing and a description, 
including a statement identifying: (a) the 
needs, conditions and circumstances that 
have caused the project’s creation and (b) 
the expected results if the project is 
approved and implemented. 

 
5 Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies 

  
5.1 The City shall establish and maintain its 

accounting systems according to generally 
accepted accounting practices and shall 
adhere to generally accepted accounting 
principles and standards promulgated by 
the Government Finance Officers 
Association (GFOA) and Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  

 
5.2 An annual audit shall be performed by an 

independent public accounting firm, 
which will issue an opinion on the annual 
financial statements, along with a 
management letter identifying areas 
needing improvement, if necessary. 

 
5.3 Full disclosure shall be provided in the 

financial statements and bond 
representations. 

 
5.3.1 Upon request, all departments 

will provide notice of all 
significant events and financial 
and related matters to the 
Finance Director for the City’s 
annual disclosures to the 
municipal markets as required by 
SEC Regulation 15-C-2-12. Full 
disclosure will be provided in the 
financial statements and bond 
representations. Significant 
events include delinquencies and 
defaults related to the City’s 
bonds, adverse tax opinions or 
events affecting the tax exempt 
status of bonds, the release, 
substitutions or sale of property 
securing repayment of bonds and 
other events having a significant 
impact on the City’s finances and 
outstanding bonds. The Finance 
Director will notify all Nationally 
Recognized Municipal Securities 
Information Repositories of these 
significant events.  
 

5.3.2 The City’s asset capitalization 
policy is to capitalize and 
depreciate assets greater than 
$10,000 with a useful life beyond 
one year. Capital assets costing 
less than $10,000 or having a 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 78



City of Albany Financial Policies                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 5 

 
 

or use of contingencies.  Actions to be avoided include expenditure deferrals into the 
following fiscal year, short-term loans, and use of one-time revenues to support 
ongoing operations. 

4. Target contingencies for operating budgets will range between 5 and 15 percent of 
operations. 

5. Internal service charges and project accounting should be used when service 
recipients and parameters of a project can be easily identified.  The charges should be 
based on methodologies that fairly allocate the full cost of services.  The Finance 
Director shall review the methodologies on a periodic basis to verify that they are 
consistent with federal guidelines and Oregon Local Budget Law. 

6. The City Manager will undertake ongoing staff and third-party reviews of City 
programs to measure efficiency and effectiveness.  Privatization and contracting with 
other governmental agencies will be evaluated as alternatives to in-house service 
delivery.  Programs that are determined to be inefficient and/or ineffective shall be 
reduced in scope or eliminated. 

 
V. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 

 
1. The City will monitor and periodically assess the City’s capital equipment and 

infrastructure, setting priorities for its renovation and replacement based on needs 
and available resources. 

2. The City will develop a multi-year program for capital improvements that will be 
reviewed annually in the budget process. 

3. Projects in the CIP will be flagged as either funded or unfunded depending on 
whether or not the forecasted operating budget can support or fund the project.  All 
funded projects are included in the operating budget for the corresponding budget 
year. 

4. The City will maintain its physical assets at a level adequate to protect the City’s 
capital investment and minimize future maintenance and replacement costs.  The 
budget process will provide for review of maintenance and orderly replacement of 
capital assets from current revenues where possible. 

 
VI. CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
1. Capital assets are non-consumable assets with a purchase price of $10,000 or greater 

and a useful life of more than one year.  The capitalization threshold for federally 
reimbursed items is $5,000. 

2. The Finance Department will oversee a physical count/inspection of all capital assets 
at least on a biennial basis.  All additions, deletions, and depreciation of 
infrastructure will be reported consistent with the requirements of the Government 
Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34. 

3. Adequate insurance will be maintained on all capital assets. 
 
VII. DEBT 

 
1. The City will generally limit long-term borrowing to capital improvements. 
2. The City will follow a policy of full disclosure on every financial report, official 

statement, and bond prospectus. 
3. The City Manager will ensure that continuing disclosure policies and procedures are 

in place and include the following: 
a. The City’s bond counsel will advise the City in developing appropriate 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 79

bneish
Highlight



 

OAM 15.60.10 1 of 13 

Statewide Policy 

 
 
PURPOSE: This policy provides guidance on accounting and financial reporting for capital 

assets. 
 
AUTHORITY:  ORS 293.590 

GASB Statement No. 34 
GASB Statement No. 42 
GASB Statement No. 51 
GASB Statement No. 72 
GASB Comprehensive Implementation Guide 2016-1, Q. 4.71 
 

APPLICABILITY: This policy applies to all state agencies included in the state’s annual financial 
statements, except those agencies specifically exempted by OAM 01.05.00. 

 
DEFINITIONS: Capital Assets: Tangible or intangible property used in agency operations 

having an initial estimated useful life of more than one year and an initial cost 
(including ancillary charges) of $5,000 or more. This definition does not include 
assets held primarily for resale; agencies account for these assets as inventory. 

 
 Acquisition Value: A market based entry price, representing the price that 

would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly 
market transaction at the acquisition date, or the amount at which a liability could 
be liquidated with the counterparty at the acquisition date. 

 
Click here for other definitions. 

 
POLICY: 
 
101. Agency management must ensure the proper accounting and reporting of capital assets and 

establish a system of internal controls that reduces the risk of theft or other loss. Agencies 
should refer to OAM 15.60.40, Intangible Assets for specific guidance on accounting for 
intangible capital assets. 

 
102. Record capital asset additions in the appropriate capital asset general ledger (GL) accounts. 

Assets that cost less than $5,000 must be expensed according to OAM 15.55.00, Non-Capital 
Assets. 

OREGON ACCOUNTING MANUAL 

Subject: Accounting and Financial Reporting Number: 15.60.10 

Division: Chief Financial Office Effective date:  September 16, 
2017 

Chapter: Accounting and Financial Reporting 

Part: Capital Assets 

Section: Classification and Capitalization 

Approved: George Naughton, Chief Financial Officer Signature on file 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 80



RESOLUTION NO. 2 FOR 2019 

 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICY REVISIONS IN THE CITY’S FINANCIAL POLICY 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Sweet Home last reviewed the Financial Policy on September 13, 2016, and; 

WHEREAS, the capitalization threshold for items purchased by the city is currently $200 per item, and; 

WHEREAS, Capital Assets are part of the City’s Annual Financial Report, and; 

WHEREAS, finance best practice recommends a capitalization threshold of $5,000 or better, and; 

WHEREAS, Section I, subsection 2 of the Sweet Home Financial Policy reads, “the relationship between 
the Operating and Capital Budgets will be explicity recognized and incorporated into the budget process,” 
and; 

WHEREAS, Section VI, subsection 1 of the Sweet Home Financial Policy reads, “City assets will not be 
degraded, given away or allowed to deteriorate except by action of the council,” and; 

WHEREAS, Section VI, subsection 2 of the Sweet Home Financial Policy reads, “Funding new long-term 
capital assets will be the responsibility of the community as a whole and should be funded through 
general obligation bonds, SDC’s proportionate equity asset shares, grants and gifts or volunteer 
contributions when appropriate,” and; 

WHEREAS, Section VI, subsection 5 of the Sweet Home Financial Policy reads, “The capitalization 
threshold used in determining if a given asset qualifies for capitalization is $200 per item.” 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF SWEET HOME adopts the following revisions to 
the Sweet Home Financial Policy: 

- Section 1, subsection 2: The relationship between the Operating and Capital Budgets will be 
incorporated into the budget process. 

- Section VI, subsection 1: City assets will be degraded, given away or allowed to deteriorate in 
accordance with SHMC Chapter 3.08 

- Section VI, subsection 5: The capitalization threshold used in determining if a given asset 
qualifies for capitalization is equal to that defined in the Oregon Accounting Manual (OAM) 
Number 15.60.10. 

 

This resolution shall take affect upon its approval and passage. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this 8th day of January 2019 

 

____________________________________________ 

Mayor 

____________________________________________ 

         City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 81



REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 
PREFERRED AGENDA: 
January 8, 2019 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Ray Towry, City Manager 
REVIEWED:   
 

TITLE:   
Council of Governments 
Teleworking Space IGA 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Teleworking Space IGA between 
City of Sweet Home & OCWCOG 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 X  MOTION 
      OTHER 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:   
To review a proposed Teleworking Space IGA between the City of Sweet Home and 
OCWCOG. 
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:  OCWCOG staff continues to excel at meeting service 
requirements and planning obligations in serving Medicaid clients, Veterans, those who 
need non-emergent medical rides, in navigating Safe Routes to Schools, Meals on 
Wheels, and scenic byways, among many other projects and programs.   OCWCOG is 
seeking work space for staff who serve Sweet Home and Lebanon residents. 
 
The contract has been reviewed and approved as to form by legal counsel. 
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
Should the City of Sweet Home enter into an IGA with Oregon Cascades West Council 
of Governments for Teleworking Space? 
 
STAKEHOLDERS:   
City of Sweet Home – We can provide better service to our community. 
Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments- provies work space for OCWCOG 
Staff who primarily serve Sweet Home and Lebanon residents. 
Citizens of Sweet Home – This would allow easier access to health services for Sweet 
Home community members. 

 
ISSUES & FINANCIAL IMPACTS: 
None Known – The City would be required to provide OCWCOG staff with internet 
access which would be no additional cost to the City.  
 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
Approval or disapproval of the contract. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.   
2. Authorize staff to inter into an Intergovernmental Agreeement with Oregon 

Cascades West Counicl of Governments for Teleworking Services. 
3. Request changes to the contract and direct staff. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Option #2 Authorize staff to inter into an Intergovernmental 
Agreeement with Oregon Cascades West Counicl of Governments for Teleworking 
Services. 

 
 
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 82



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 83



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 84



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 85



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 86



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 87



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 88



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 89



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 90



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 91



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 92



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 93



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 94



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 95



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 96



 

  

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 97



 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 98



 
 
             
             
             
             
   
 

December happenings at the Library! 

Statistics 
 
Patrons checked out 2,742 items and renewed 851 items.   
 
Patrons placed 287 items on hold.  
 
Staff issued 25 new library cards to patrons and 2 nonresident cards. 
 
436 individuals signed on to use the computers in the library and printed 916 pages. 
 
Resource sharing savings was $2,426.09 for December.   
 
 
Events 
 
Rickie Birran from Man of Words theater performed the Christmas Carol is Prose at the 
Library.   
 
We offered 7 baby and preschool storytimes with 48 children in attendance and 34 
parents.   
 
Patrons can now print from a self-service kiosk print release station saving them time. 
The public computers are networked to print from the photocopy machine.  This new 
service will save staff time and toner replacement costs.  The print release station was 
made possible from the Trust Management grant.  
 
We received a Ready to Read grant from the State Library for $1450.00 for summer 
reading programs. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by - Rose Peda, Library Services Director 
January, 2018 

City of Sweet Home 
Sweet Home Public Library 

1101 – 13th Avenue 
Sweet Home, OR  97386 

541-367-5007 
 
 
 
 
 

Sweet Home Public Library 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 99



QUARTERLY CIRCULATION STATISTICS

BY ITEM TYPE

2018 October November December

Auto Manuals 0 0 0

Books on CD 96 120 146

Children's Board Books 122 115 65

Children's Easy Readers 238 266 193

Children's Fiction 228 295 240

Children's Graphic Novels 96 105 60

Children's NonFiction 222 264 123

Children's Picture Books 530 632 522

Children's Ready to Read 108 101 79

DVDs 533 627 643

Fiction 330 351 287

Magazines 32 43 28

Music CD 43 3 12

Mystery 246 285 265

New Fiction 136 177 168

New NonFiction 68 65 73

New Mystery 97 140 127

New Science Fiction 4 6 18

NonFiction 231 284 226

Northwest 18 19 18

Paperback General 21 15 12

Paperback Mystery 43 37 68

Paperback Romance 41 40 37

Paperback Westerns 10 24 10

Paperback Science Fiction 4 10 2

Science Fiction / Fantasy 30 46 18

Teen Fiction 95 105 59

Teen Graphic Novel 16 3 31

Teen NonFiction 1 7 2

Westerns 28 25 37

Ukuleles 3 3 3

TOTALS 3689 4216 3593

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 100



Statistics for October, 2018 Statistics for November, 2018 Statistics for December, 2018 
 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

 
PATRON ACTIVITY 

OPAC Logins                      244 OPAC Logins                     208 OPAC Logins           228         
SIP2 Logins                        396 SIP2 Logins                       359 SIP2 Logins                 265       
   
CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS CIRCULATION AND RENEWALS 
Checkouts                          3235 Checkouts                         2961 Checkouts                    2742     
Renewals by Staff             621 Renewals by Staff            733 Renewals by Staff          590  
Renewals by OPAC           360 Renewals by OPAC          103 Renewals by OPAC         261   
   
HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED HOLDS REQUESTED 

Holds by Staff                    139 Holds by Staff                    158 Holds by Staff                 101    
Holds by OPAC                  131 Holds by OPAC                  93 Holds by OPAC                126 
   
ACTIVE PATRONS             2432 ACTIVE PATRONS            2434 ACTIVE PATRONS          2426 
   
NEW PATRONS NEW PATRONS                  NEW PATRONS                  
Resident                              48 Resident                             65 Resident                       23      
NonResident                       3 NonResident                      4 NonResident                2      
   
   
ITEM COUNTS                     36135 ITEM COUNTS                   35921 ITEM COUNTS                35993    
   
PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              PUBLIC ACCESS COMPUTERS              
Logins this month                450 Logins this month               376 Logins this month              436 
Pages printed                       1231 Pages printed                      611 Pages printed                     916 

 
Resource Sharing Savings  $2,604.57           Resource Sharing Savings  $2,298.05       Resource Sharing Savings  $2,426.09 
 
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 101



Library Advisory Board Minutes 
December 13, 2018 
Meeting time 4:42pm 

 
Present at the meeting were Charlene Adams, Eva Jurney and Diane Gerson.  Excused 
absence for Don Hopkins.   
 
Motion to approve the minutes (Diane Gerson made the motion and Eva Jurney seconded).  
Motion approved (3 ayes, 0 opposed and 2 absent). 
 
Rose distributed copies of the November happenings including grants and programs.  
Discussion of library card registrations and Lynda.com.   
 
Discussion of adult programming and offering programs during the day or taking the programs 
to the Senior Center.  Diane Gerson recommended connecting with Senior Center and offering 
programs during the Wednesday lunch at 1pm.   
 
Rose informed the board that the library will be closed on Christmas Eve, Christmas day and 
New Year’s Day.  To compensate for the additional closed hours, the library will be open 9am to 
6pm on Thursday, December 27 and Friday, December 28.  Open hours on Saturday, 
December 30 will be from  9am to 5pm.   
 
The air duct system in the library was cleaned.  Rose distributed pictures of the duct work prior 
to cleaning.   
 
Discussion of the Halsey and Brownsville Public Libraries join the Linn Libraries Consortium.  
Rose stated that she has had conversations with the librarian from Halsey Public Library and 
even with the facts and information about the consortium; they may not be joining because of 
cost.   
 
There is a group in the city working on the homeless issues and individuals from the group will 
be attending the Linn County Adult Services meeting in Lebanon.  Discussion of having a social 
worker in the Library and the responses from other libraries in Oregon that offers this service.  
The board suggested that the library doesn’t have the space in the library and suggested the 
Senior Center might be a better location. 
 
The next Library Board meeting will be January 10, 2019 at 4:30pm. 
 
   

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 102



 
 
 
 
 
 

 12/31/2018 12/31/2017   

% 
Change 

Call Volume 9626 9914  -288 -2.99% 

Cad Calls 18456 18055  401 2.17% 

Person Crimes Reported 151 129  22 14.57% 

Persons Crimes Cleared 104 93  11 10.58% 

Property Crimes Reported 642 577  65 10.12% 

Property Crimes Cleared 222 201  21 9.46% 
 

Trends: 

Homelessness - As many of you know there has been a big push by the community to help deal 
with homelessness in our area. On November 15th I held a meeting at the PD with several 
interested individuals on this topic. At the meeting we heard from a member of the Lebanon 
Coalition on Homelessness and discussed their approach.  

The goal is to bring existing resources that may be able to assist the homeless population into 
Sweet Home. There are a lot of resources available, they just aren’t easily accessible to those in 
East County.  

I was able to attend a meeting with the Linn County Adult Services Team. They have agreed to 
meet in Sweet Home every other month, starting in February. They serve as a “clearing house” 
for available services. The idea would be to address homelessness one person at a time.  

In order to be referred to the Adult Services Team, an information packet would be filled out and 
then the person seeking assistance would meet with the Team and their situation would be 
assessed and the appropriate resources engaged.  

This would be a first step in dealing with homelessness.  

Hiring process - Hopefully everyone has had the opportunity to welcome both Ethan Rowe and 
Bret Adams into our Department. Ethan and Bret will be attending the Police Academy in 
February.  

We have one Officer position remaining to fill. The applicant has successfully completed the 
Psych and is now moving to the physical exam portion of the process. My hope is to have this 
person on by the second or third week of January.  This applicant was further up the list but 
dropped because he was still on active duty in the military. He has since been discharged. This 
person is also a local residence and so far, seems like a good fit.  

The Dispatch hiring process closed on December 19th. There have been several applicants 
which is encouraging. Two applicants with current Dispatch experience has been interviewed 

City of Sweet Home 
1950 Main Street 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 
541-367-5181 

Fax 541-367-5235 
www.ci.sweet-home.or.us 

shpd@ci.sweet-home.or.us 
 

Sweet Home Police Department 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 103



and will move into the background phase. They have been provided a background packet and 
we are waiting for the last one to be turned in. When it is, we will immediately begin the 
background process.  

Regardless of the outcome with the Dispatch applicant that has been interviewed, we will 
proceed with the remainder of the process to develop a future hiring list. 

 

Person Crimes Dec-18 Dec-17 

   

Assault (All) 4 4 

Child Neglect   

Criminal Homicide   

Custodial Interference   

Elder Abuse   

Harassment 5 6 

Kidnapping   

Menacing   

Other Sex Offense  1 

Rape 1 1 

Violation Restraining Order   

Person Crime Other   

 10 12 

   

Property Crimes Dec-18 Dec-17 

   

Arson   

Burglary 3 4 

Criminal Mischief 8 5 

Forgery 1  

Fraud 9 4 

Motor Vehicle Theft 2 3 

Recover Stolen Vehicle 1 1 

Reckless Burning   

Robbery  1 

Theft 27 25 

 51 43 

 

 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 104



MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Ray Towry, City Manager 
FROM:  Greg Springman, Public Works Director 
DATE:   January 2, 2019 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Activities Report/December 2018 
 
  
 
This memorandum provides a brief periodic update of specific projects and activities performed 
by the Public Works Department. 
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) Dashboard 
This dashboard section summarizes work done on key maintenance activities. Goals will be 
adjusted over time as workloads shift to keep up with current requirements. Routine activities 
are tracked monthly. Seasonal activities are tracked on a year-to-date basis and may not reflect 
work done prior to implementing our new Dude Solutions work order system. 
 

Potholes repaired
33/30

Street sweeping miles
326/300

Locate tickets
27/40

Water leak repairs
7/5

Hydrant service/repairs (YTD)
155/200

Playground equipment inspection 4x each
5/16

Clean parks restrooms & garbage 8x each
17/72

Mow each park 12x each (YTD)
98/96

Sewer main miles CCTV (YTD)
0.7/15

Sewer main miles cleaned (YTD)
0/15

Manhole leak repairs (YTD)
0/8

Catch basins inspect & clean (YTD)
552/500

December 2018

 
 
 
 

Work Orders

Posted: 398

Completed: 532

Top 10 Categories

Water Turn Ons/Offs 82

Meter Re-Read 28

Other - Streets 17

Park Maintenance 17

Bathrooms/Garbage 17

Locates 16

Leaf Collection 

Vacuuming - Streets
13

Flow Monitor 

Operations
11

Pothole Repair 11

Street Patch for Water 11
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 105



 
Current & Upcoming Projects 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement Project 

Scope: Upgrades to equipment & processes for DEQ Compliance. 

Status: Project on schedule. Staff & design team conducted site visits to tour Florence 
WWTP Biosolids composing facility. Liquid stream workshop was held on December 18, 
2018. 

 
Fall Leaf Collection Program 

Scope: Develop program to remove leaves from the City right of ways. 

Status: The Fall Leaf Collection Program officially ended on December 15, 2018. The Public 
Works Department has described it as a huge success. Public Works had 261 pickup work 
order requests, with an estimated 1350 cubic yards of leaves removed.  

 
Water Leak Detection Project 

Scope: Contract services to identify water leaks throughout the 54 miles of water distribution 
system.  

Status: American Leak Detection has completed their review of the City’s water distribution 
system. PW staff has begun to schedule, and make repairs on the identified water leaks. 
American Leak Detection will provide a detailed leak report, with GPS locations by the end of 
January 2019. 

 
Sankey Park Restroom Installation 

Scope: Install new restroom facility in Sankey Park.  

Status: Restroom has selected and ordered. Staff selected CXT as the manufacturer, 
delivery tentative scheduled for January, 2019. PW staff completed rough grading for 
restroom, offsite utilizes in pad, and completed parking lot improvements. 

 
Parks Irrigation System Improvements 

Scope: Inspect and repair existing irrigation systems in Sankey Park, Northside Park, and 
Ashbrook Park.  

Status: Staff completed installation of new irrigation system at Ashbrook Park. Staff has 
ordered materials to install new irrigation system at Northside Park, east side of Clover Park, 
and remainder of lower Sankey Park. Staff has discovered an irrigation system installed in 
Strawberry Park. Staff to investigate costs for repair. 

 
2018 Overlay Project 

Scope: 2” pavement overlay on 18th Ave, Ames Creek Rd, 45th-46th-47th Aves, & Kalmia St. 

Status: Project is in preliminary design and planning. 

 
Weddle Bridge Inspection and Tuning 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 106



Scope: Inspect and maintain Weddle Bridge. 

Status: Inspection of Weddle Bridge is required to certify structural integrity. Report will follow 
the inspection process with recommendations.  

 
Public Works Facility Security Upgrades 

Scope: Install security system at Public Works Facility 

Status: Staff installed new security system at Public Works Facility. Staff is making camera 
adjustments as needed to ensure proper camera coverage of Public Works grounds. Staff is 
in discussion with an alarm system vendor for the equipment yard. 

 
DEQ - 18th Ave Groundwater Contamination Resolution 

Scope: Support DEQ project to resolve neighborhood issue of contaminated groundwater 
east of 18th Ave and north of Tamarack St. 

Status:  Staff will proceed with LID for secure funding. 
 
Air/Vacuum Valve Program 

Scope: Locate air/vacuum relief valves on city water system and prioritize recommended 
maintenance, to resolve distribution issues caused by air pockets. 

Status: New valve installed at Lake Pointe Pump Station.  New valve installed at highway by 
Murphy Mill.  Replaced existing dysfunctional valve at 44th Ave.  Work will be ongoing. 

 
Water Service Reconnection Program 

Scope: On streets with redundant water mains, reconnect water services from old 2” mains to 
existing new larger mains and abandon redundant 2” mains. 

Status: Plans for Elm Street water service reconnections are complete & ready for bid. City 
Council to review RFP for the water meter reconnection project in October, 2018. Staff 
completed bid process, but will add additional street repair work to the project, then re-bid the 
project. 

 
10th Ave Reservoir Leak & SCADA Relocation 

Scope: Resolve water loss issue from leaking 1938 reservoir and relocate SCADA equipment 
to newer reservoir. 

Status: Staff located and isolated valve for this reservoir. Staff to determine water loss. The 
SCADA contractor completed the relocating of SCADA equipment onto the newest reservoir 
on 10th Ave., which will provide better level data at low storage levels and allow continuance 
of data connection while the old reservoir is isolated/evaluated. All work has been completed. 

 
Linn Shuttle Bus Shelters 

Scope: Support Linn Shuttle grant project to install bus shelters at highway locations. 

Status: Linn Shuttle has retained a contractor for installation and has ordered the shelters.  
Staff assisted Linn Shuttle with the ODOT application. 

 City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 107



  
SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

December 11, 2018 
 
The meeting of the Administration and Finance Committee was called to order at 5:36 p.m. in the 
Sweet Home Police Department.   
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Recording Secretary Julie Fisher 
 
Registered Visitors: None 
 
Media: None 
 

Committee Members: Councilor Goble (P), Councilor Gerson (P), Councilor Trask (P)   
              
The purpose of the Administration and Finance Committee meeting was to review bulk water rate 
proposals.  Two separate proposals were submitted from the Sweet Home School District and No 
Drought, both asking for an adjustment in bulk water rates.  The committee requested more 
information and would like in person discussions with each entity.  
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 
 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council Administration and Finance 
meeting on December 11, 2018. 
 
 
 
       
 

City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 108



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 109



City Council Packet 01-08-2019 pg. 110


	(A) City Council Agenda 1-08-19
	(C)(1) Council Minutes 12-11-18
	(C)(2) Council Minutes 12-18-18 ES
	(C)(3) Council Minutes 12-18-18 SP
	(F)(e)(1)RCA VR18-07 Appeal (12-31-18)
	(F)(e)(2) VR18-07 Staff Report for CC with attachments
	(F)(f)(1) RCA Sweetheart Run Road Closure 01 08 19
	(F)(f)(3) Sweetheart Run Road Closure Map
	(F)(F)(4) Resolution Sweetheart Run Street Closure 2019
	(F)(G)(1) RCA - Financial Policy Revision
	(F)(g)(10) Financial Policy Resolution
	(F)(g)(2) Financial Policies - Updated 1-8-19
	(f)(g)(3) Corvallis Capital Threshold
	(f)(g)(4) n-Fixed Asset Capitalization Policy
	(F)(g)(5) Stayton Fiscal Policies
	(F)(g)(6) Albany Capital Threshold
	(F)(g)(7) OAM Capital Asset
	(F)(h)(1)  RCA- OCWCOG IGA Work Space
	(F)(h)(2) IGA_SweetHomeTeleworkingSpace_NeedsCounterSignature
	(F)(i)(1) LEP Draft Changes Tracked
	(H)((c)(i)(1) Revenue & Expenses Finance
	(H)(C)(ii)(1) City Council report December 2018
	(H)(C)(ii)(2) Circulation Statistics by Item type October, November, December 2018
	(H)(C)(ii)(3) Patron Statistics for October, November, December 2018
	(H)(C)(ii)(4) Library Advisory Board Minute December 13, 2018
	(H)(c)(iv)(1) Council Stats - January 2019 PD
	(H)(v)(1) PW Monthly Report 010219
	(I)(1) City Council 12-11-18 Admin & Finance
	(Z)(1) Comcast Notice Jan 2019
	(Z)(2) Comcast Noitce 1-08-19



